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1 THE REPORTER: No. 1| correct?
2 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Okay. Thank you. 2 MS. CAMERON-RULKOWSKI: That's correct,
3 MS. MCDOWELL: Thank you. 3| your Honor.
4 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Appearing today on 4 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Thank you.
5| behalf of Staff? 5 MS. MCDOWELL: This is Katherine McDowell
6 MS. CAMERON-RULKOWSKI: On behalf of Staff, 6| for Pacific Power. We also agree with that stipulation,
7| Jennifer Cameron-Rulkowski, Assistant Attorney General. 7| which we were able to resolve over the weekend.
8| And with me is Julian Beattie, and also with me is 8 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Thank you.
9| Patrick Oshie and also Christopher Casey. 9 (All proposed exhibits admitted.)
10 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Thank you. Appearing 10 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Are there any procedural
11| today on behalf of Public Counsel? 11| matters that need to be addressed before we begin the
12 MR. FFITCH: Good morning, your Honor. 12| hearing? Okay.
13| Thank you. Simon ffitch with the Office of Public 13 MS. CAMERON-RULKOWSKI: Your Honor, one
14| Counsel, the Washington State Attorney General's Office. 14| question.
15 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Thank you. Appearing 15 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Sure.
16| today on behalf of the Energy Project? 16 MS. CAMERON-RULKOWSKI: Did you want a
17 MR. PURDY: Good morning. This is Brad 17| shorter form of direct examination when we introduce our
18| Purdy appearing on behalf of the Energy Project. 18| witnesses and tender them for cross?
19 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Thank you. Appearing 19 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: | was just about to get
20| today on behalf of Boise White Paper? 20| to that, but thank you. That was a good segue.
21 MR. COWELL: Appearing on behalf of Boise 21 So | do want the parties who are sponsoring
22| White Paper, your Honor, Jesse Cowell. 22| the testimony to lay the foundation for each of the
23 MR. PURDY: I'm not sure we have a good -- 23| witnesses after | swear them in, and then we'll begin --
24 MR. COWELL: Sorry. Again, for the record, 24| we'll get into cross-examination and possible
25| good morning. Appearing on behalf of Boise White Paper, 25| clarification questions from the bench.
Page 140 Page 142
1| Jesse Cowell. 1 So are there any other procedural issues
2 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Thank you. And 2| before | bring in the commissioners?
3| appearing today on behalf of the Sierra Club? 3 MS. MCDOWELL: Your Honor, Katherine
4 MR. RITCHIE: Your Honor, Travis Ritchie on 4| McDowell again. Are you -- in terms of the order of the
5| behalf of the Sierra Club. 5| cross-examination, will you just go over across the
6 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Thank you. Is there 6| column, Staff --
7| anyone representing the Northwest Energy Coalition? 7 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Yes. Yes.
8 MS. GERLITZ: We don't have legal counsel 8 MS. MCDOWELL: Okay. Great.
9| here today, no. 9 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: We'll start with
10 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Okay. 10| Mr. Dalley and then -- is it "Daley" or "Dalley"?
11 MS. GERLITZ: I'm Wendy Gerlitz. 11 MS. MCDOWELL: Dalley.
12 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Okay. Thank you. 12 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: We'll start with
13 MS. GERLITZ: Okay. 13| Mr. Dalley and go right across the board, Staff, Public
14 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Can you come up and 14| Counsel and Boise.
15| spell your last name? 15 MS. MCDOWELL: Thank you.
16 MS. GERLITZ: Oh, sure. 16 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: You're welcome. All
17 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Thanks. 17| right. If there's nothing else, I'll go get the
18 MS. GERLITZ: Wendy Gerlitz, G-E-R-L-I-T-Z. 18| commissioners. Thank you.
19 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Thank you. So | think 19 Mr. Dalley, if you would remain standing.
20| we've heard from the parties. 20| Raise your right hand.
21 Is there anyone on the conference bridge who 21
22| wishes to make an appearance? 22| R. BRYCE DALLEY, witness herein, having been
23 Hearing nothing, it's my understanding that 23 first duly sworn on oath,
24| the parties wish to admit all exhibits that are 24 was examined and testified
25| pre-filed, including cross-exam exhibits; is that 25 as follows:
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EXAMINATION BY MS. MCDOWELL / DALLEY

Page 145
EXAMINATION BY MR. BEATTIE / DALLEY

1 1| Attorney General's Office representing Commission Staff.

2 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Thank you. Please be 2| Thank you for being here this morning.

3| seated. 3 I'd like to talk about accelerated depreciation.

4 Ms. McDowell. 4 Are you familiar with the testimony of Joanna

5 MS. MCDOWELL: Thank you, Judge Friedlander, 5| Huang that was filed in this docket?

6| and good morning, commissioners. 6| A. Yes,lam.

7 *** EXAMINATION BY MS. MCDOWELL *** 7| Q. Then you know that Commission Staff has a

8| BY MS. MCDOWELL: 8| concern about whether the evidentiary record is

9 Q. Mr. Dalley, how are you employed? 9| sufficient to support the Company's proposal in this
10| A. I'm Vice President of Regulation for 10| matter, right?
11| Pacific Power. 11| A. Yes. It's my understanding that Staff's
12| Q. And in that capacity, have you prepared exhibits |12| position is that there's not a depreciation study.
13| and testimony for the proceeding today? 13| Q. Well, this morning I'd just like to find out if
14| A. lhave. 14| you can help me figure out whether there is a sufficient
15 Q. And for the record, are those exhibits and 15| evidentiary basis for the Company's proposal.
16| testimony RBD-1T through RBD-4? 16 Okay?
17| A. Thatis correct, yes. 17| A. Okay.
18| Q. Mr. Dalley, do you have any changes or 18| Q. Soyou have testified that Pacific Power's
19| corrections to your pre-filed testimony or exhibits? 19| proposal is a policy-based response to new laws and
20 A. ldo. I have one correction. 20| regulations that may shorten the useful lives of coal
21| Q. Is that to your direct testimony or your 21| plants, correct?
22| rebuttal testimony, Mr. Dalley? 22| A. Thatis correct.
23| A. Rebuttal testimony that's identified as Exhibit 23| Q. So it must be the Company's position that the
24| RBD-3T. 24| Commission may establish new depreciation rates for
25| Q. Can you identify the correction or change that 25| policy reasons only; is that correct?

Page 144 Page 146
EXAMINATION BY MR. BEATTIE / DALLEY EXAMINATION BY MR. BEATTIE / DALLEY

1| you have, Mr. Dalley? 1| A. Not necessarily only for policy reasons, but

2| A. Yes. It's on page 25 of that exhibit, RBD-3T, 2| that is certainly a consideration for the Commission

3| line 8, should be corrected. The word "retirement" -- 3| when establishing depreciation rates.

4| it says "post-retirement benefits." The word 4| Q. Did the Company provide any non-policy reasons

5| "retirement" should be replaced with "employment." So 5| for its proposal in this case?

6| it should read "post-employment benefits." 6| A. No,itdid not. As part of this case, we have

7| Q. Thank you, Mr. Dalley. 7| not submitted a new engineering or technical study

8 Do you have any other changes or corrections to 8| associated with the facilities at our Jim Bridger plant

9| your pre-filed testimony? 9| or our Colstrip plant, but we have proposed to modify
10 A. |do not. 10| those lives to address the emerging environmental
11| Q. Iflwere to ask you the questions set forth in 11| policies that exist here in Washington and federally.
12| your pre-filed testimony today, would your answers be 12| Q. The currently-approved depreciation rates are
13| the same? 13| based on a study, correct?
14| A. Yes, they would. 14| A. Yes, they are. The rates that are currently in
15 MS. MCDOWELL: Mr. Dalley is available for 15| effect were approved by the Commission as part of our
16| cross-examination, Judge. 16| '13 -- it was actually our 2012 depreciation study, but
17 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Thank you. 17| it was approved in 2013.
18 Ms. Cameron-Rulkowski? Or Mr. Beattie. 18| Q. So to confirm, the Company's position is that
19| Thank you. 19| the Commission can depart from those study-based
20 MR. BEATTIE: Thank you, Judge Friedlander. 20| depreciation rates for policy reasons, correct?
21 *** EXAMINATION BY MR. BEATTIE *** 21| A. Yes. The Commission can reset and adjust
22| BY MR. BEATTIE: 22| depreciation rates in any proceeding, and we've proposed
23| Q. Good morning, Mr. Dalley. 23| that the time is right in this proceeding for the
24| A. Good morning. 24| Commission to do so based on the policy -- environmental
25 Q. My name is Julian Beattie. I'm with the 25| policy, | guess, framework for conditions that exist
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EXAMINATION BY MR. BEATTIE / DALLEY EXAMINATION BY MR. BEATTIE / DALLEY
1| today, yes. 1| in that state.
2| Q. Thank you. One of the rationales provided by 2| Q. So Mr. Dalley, your assumption -- your big
3| the Company for accelerated depreciation in this caseis | 3| assumption, I'll say, is that Colstrip 4 and Jim
4| that doing so will align the depreciation rates with 4| Bridger, the plants that we're talking about, will, in
5| those currently approved in Oregon; is that correct? 5| fact, undergo early retirement?
6| A. Yes. 6| A. That's not my testimony. My testimony is that,
7| Q. I'dlike to probe the alignment rationale for a 7| with the existing and emerging environmental policies
8| few minutes. 8| here in Washington and federally, the risk associated
9 Adopting Oregon's depreciable lives will not 9| with early retirement is greater than what we had when
10| actually align the rates. Do you understand? 10| we established those rates in 2013. And by acting now,
11| A. Yes, | follow. | mean, | could -- 11| the Commission and the Company can position our
12 Q. And that's because, even if we were to set the 12| customers for a future where it does not have as
13| end life at the same end point, we have a lot of 13| significant of impacts to our customers to adjust those
14| catching up to do in Washington because Oregon has 14| rates.
15| already been operating on these shortened lives; isn't 15| Q. lunderstand your rationale. What would you say
16| that right? 16| is the probability that either of these plants will
17| A. Thatis correct. 17| actually go out of service earlier than their
18| Q. So we're not really aligning with Oregon except 18| currently-approved depreciable lives?
19| for the very last day when we finally catch up under the |19 A. | think it's difficult to determine, but | would
20| Company's proposal? 20| say, based on the political environment, and as well as
21| A. We are aligning the useful lives of the 21| the policies, it's more likely than not that the useful
22| facilities between Washington and Oregon, so that's the 22| lives would be shortened rather than -- to even maintain
23| alignment I'm describing. 23| their existing ones, or be lengthened.
24| Q. lIsn'tit true that aligning with Oregon means 24| Q. And that's just your hunch, correct?
25| falling out of alignment with the other states in which 25| A. There's -- there's no specific requirement, no,
Page 148 Page 150
EXAMINATION BY MR. BEATTIE / DALLEY EXAMINATION BY MR. BEATTIE / DALLEY
1| the Company operates? 1| to shut down these facilities on those dates, but our
2] A. Yes, itwould. Our other states are using the 2| proposal here is one to mitigate risk for customers in
3| depreciation lives that are currently approved here in 3| the future.
4| Washington. So it would deviate from those other 4| Q. Okay. So the answer, again, is you're just
5| states, but would align with Oregon that has a shorter 5| speculating?
6| life for those facilities. 6| A. We're - | guess we're trying to adapt and make
7 Q. So what have we accomplished if we fall out of 7| sure that we could position customers and the Company
8| alignment with Utah, Idaho, Wyoming and California? 8| for a future where we don't have to have those dramatic
91 A. Well, | think we've -- we'll have made 9| increases, but there is no specific shutdown date
10| significant progress here for our Washington customers 10| identified at this time for those facilities.
11| in that we will be minimizing the future rate impacts 11 Q. And when you say there is no specific shutdown
12| associated with, potentially, acceleration of 12| date, you mean the Company has not committed to a
13| depreciation rates in the future. 13| specific shutdown date for either of these facilities?
14 And so by addressing this issue now and 14| A. Thatis correct.
15| accelerating those lives to a shorter life today, we 15 Q. How do we know that the Company will not simply
16| could do so at a modest impact to customer rates. If we 16| continue to invest in these facilities beyond what you
17| wait and adjust those rates at a future date, the impact 17| are currently advocating as their depreciable lives?
18| to customers could be much greater, and that's what 18| A. Each of the investments the Company makes at its
19| we're trying to address here by aligning the lives now. 19| facilities will be reviewed by the Commission for
20 Q. But true or false, aligning rates with those in 20| prudency, and they will be also be evaluated based on
21| Oregon has no impact on, say, how the Utah Commission |21| the economic conditions that exist when those investment
22| treats the operating life and the depreciable lives of 22| decision are made. And so the Commission would have
23| these plants? 23| full transparency and record for those decisions should
24| A. Thatis correct. Each Commission has 24| they be made.
25| jurisdiction over the depreciation rates that are used 25 Q. Do you think that the Company's inability to
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Page 151
EXAMINATION BY MR. BEATTIE / DALLEY

Page 153
EXAMINATION BY MR. FFITCH / DALLEY

1| commit to a specific shutdown date for either of these 1| A. Subject to check, yes. | don't have that figure
2| facilities undermines the flexibility rationale offered 2| right in front of me, but that sounds about right.
3| by the Company for this proposal? 3| Q. And so for year one, the impacts of accelerating
4| A. No, I donot. I believe this is a -- the ripe 4| the depreciation on Jim Bridger and Colstrip actually
5| opportunity to adjust these rates. We could do it at a 5| exceeds the amount of the increase that you're
6| modest increase to customer rates, and | think it 6| requesting in the first year of your two-year rate plan
7| provides significant risk mitigation for customers in 7| proposal?
8| the future, so I think it's an ample time to do this. 8| A. Thatis correct. With the other elements of the
9| Q. Those modest increases, they are still very 9| test period considered, that is certainly true.
10| real, however? 10 Q. Now, we just heard a response to questions from
11| A. Certainly. Every increase that we have impacts 11| Staff that the current depreciation rates were put in
12| our customers. | was justin Yakima and Walla Walla 12| place in 2013, so they've been in place for just a
13| last week at public comment hearings and heard our 13| little over two years; is that right?
14| customers articulate concerns over upward pressure on 14 A. Yes, that's correct.
15| rates, but | also heard customers say that they would 15| Q. And during the intervening period, PacifiCorp
16| prefer to have modest or smaller increases this year and 16| had a rate case before this Commission for Washington
17| next year rather than a big increase in 2018. 17| rates, did it not?
18 And so although each of those increases has an 18| A. Yes,itdid, in 2014.
19| impact on our customers, | think that they would prefer 19 Q. And in your rebuttal testimony, you indicate
20| them to be modest and predictable. 20| that the filing provides the Company needed cost
21 MR. BEATTIE: All right. That's all the 21| recovery, enabling investments necessary to provide safe
22| questions | have. Thank you very much. 22| and reliable utility service.
23 THE WITNESS: Thank you. 23 Is that your testimony?
24 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Thank you, Mr. Beattie. 24 A. Yes.
25| And thank you for the correction on your name as well. 25 Q. Have you identified any specific safety and
Page 152 Page 154
EXAMINATION BY MR. FFITCH / DALLEY EXAMINATION BY MR. FFITCH / DALLEY
1| | apologize for the mispronunciation. 1| reliability investments in evidence in this case that
2 | believe Mr. ffitch. 2| PacifiCorp has been unable to make as a result of the
3 MR. FFITCH: Thank you, your Honor. Good 3| current coal plant depreciation rates?
4| morning, commissioners. 4| A. Can you rephrase or ask me that again? I'm not
5 *** EXAMINATION BY MR. FFITCH *** 5| sure | tracked right the last piece of that question.
6| BY MR. FFITCH: 6| Q. [I'll restate the question.
7| Q. Good morning, Mr. Dalley. Simon ffitch for the 7| A. Thank you.
8| Public Counsel office. 8| Q. Have you identified any specific safety and
9 MR. FFITCH: A number of the topics that we had 9| reliability investments in evidence in this case that
10| intended to cover were covered by Staff, so | apologize 10| PacifiCorp has been unable to make as a result of the
11| to the bench. | may be a little bit stop-start here as 11| current coal plant depreciation rates?
12| | try to edit on the fly. 12| A. Well, we have certainly identified safety and
13 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Thank you. 13| reliability investments that are necessary, and they are
14| BY MR. FFITCH: 14| part of this case. Two of those that | would mention
15| Q. Just to get one thing, | think, clear on the 15| are upgrade to the Union Gap substation, just outside of
16| dollars here, Mr. Dalley, in the rebuttal presentation, 16| Yakima, which is needed for reliability. And as far as
17| the Company is now requesting a somewhat reduced 17| safety and reliability, our EMS, or Emergency Management
18| increase for the first year of approximately $9 million, 18| System, has also been proposed as part of this rate
19| correct? 19| case. So those are two investments that are necessary
20 A. Thatis correct. 20| for those items you mentioned, safety and reliability.
21| Q. Andam/l correct in the Company's rebuttal case [21| Q. Inthe 2014 rate case that you mentioned, that
22| that the revised adjustments for accelerated 22| was -- that took place subsequent to the adoption of the
23| depreciation on Jim Bridger and Colstrip has an impact |23| current depreciation rates, did PacifiCorp take the
24| on revenue requirement of approximately 10.1 million, |24| position that those depreciation rates prevented the
25| correct? 25| Company from making investments necessary to provide

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC

206 287 9066

Page: 6



Docket No. UE-152253 - Vol. V

WUTC v. Pacific Power & Light Company

Page 155
EXAMINATION BY MR. FFITCH / DALLEY

Page 157
EXAMINATION BY MR. FFITCH / DALLEY

1| safe and reliable service? 1| basic value of tangible capital assets, less salvage (if
2| A. No, itdid not. 2| any), over the estimated useful life of the unit (which
3| Q. Isityour position that if the Company is not 3| may be a group of assets) in a systematic and rational
4| allowed to accelerate the recovery of Jim Bridger and 4| manner.
5| Colstrip plant depreciation in this case, the Company 5 That's the definition he provides, correct?
6| will not make investments that are needed to provide 6 A. Yes,itis.
7| safe and reliable utility service? 7| Q. And then later at -- immediately following that,
8| A. No, that's not my testimony. | think you have 8| at lines 20 and 21, he states that "The actual payment
9| to look at the test period kind of in totality, all of 9| for an electric utility plant asset occurs in the period
10| the elements. And here, in this case, we have some 10| in which it is acquired through purchase or
11| significant capital investments that are necessary to 11| construction,"” correct?
12| maintain the system and keep our system safe, but 12 A. Yes, that's what it says.
13| there's also a proposal to accelerate depreciation. 13 Q. Now, if you would, can | get you to turn to
14| Those components together comprehensively equate to the 14| Cross-Exhibit RBD-7?
15| rate increases that we're proposing as part of this 15 A. I'mthere.
16| case. 16| Q. Do you have that?
17 So in the first year, as revised in our rebuttal 17 A. Yes.
18| testimony, 2.69 percent, and in the second year, 18 Q. And those are general instructions from FERC for
19| 2.99 percent. But a significant element of that 19| the uniform system of accounts specifically regarding
20| increase is associated with accelerated depreciation of 20| depreciation, correct?
21| our coal facilities. And because of that kind of modest 21 A. Thatis correct. In preparing -- once |
22| impact to customer rates, with all of those things 22| received this cross-exhibit -- this is an excerpt from a
23| considered, we think it is the right time to make that 23| rather voluminous CFR, or Code of Federal Regulations,
24| adjustment on accelerated depreciation. 24| but yes, the page 3 of that exhibit is -- describes
25| Q. Aliright. Can you please turn to what's been 25| depreciation accounting.
Page 156 Page 158
EXAMINATION BY MR. FFITCH / DALLEY EXAMINATION BY MR. FFITCH / DALLEY
1| marked as Cross-Exhibit RBD-8CX. 1| Q. Yes. Thankyou. You're correct, it is an
2 Do you have that? 2| excerpt.
3| A. Yes,ldo. 3 So if you could turn to page 3. You've
4] Q. And would you agree that that is testimony filed 4| anticipated my direction there. Page 3 is really the
5| by or on behalf of PacifiCorp by Mr. Henry Lay in the 5| substance of the exhibit. If you could look at
6| 2013 depreciation docket? 6| Section A there, Section A describes the method of
7 A. Yes, itis. 7| depreciation accounting and states, "Utilities must use
8| Q. And if you look at the testimony on the page, 8| a method of depreciation that allocates in a systematic
9| Mr. Lay provides a definition of depreciation and 9| and rational manner the service value of depreciable
10| generally explains the concept of depreciation, correct? |10| property over the service life of the property,"
11| A. Which page was that? 11| correct?
12| Q. Page 4. | apologize. | hadn't yet directed you 12| A. Yes.
13| to the page. So if you could please turn to page 4. 13| Q. And do you agree with that?
14 MS. MCDOWELL: Mr. ffitch, is that page 4 of 14| A. Yes.
15| the exhibit or page 4 of the testimony? 15| Q. Is PacifiCorp's proposed accelerated
16 MR. FFITCH: Let's use the exhibit page. 16| depreciation of the Jim Bridger coal plant assets based
17| It's page 5 of the exhibit. 17| on the Company's current best estimate of the service
18 MS. MCDOWELL: Thank you. 18| life of the property?
19| BY MR. FFITCH: 19| A. Yes. Our proposal considers a number of
20 Q. lIs it correct, Mr. Dalley, that starting at 20| different factors, and it kind of -- maybe point to part
21| page -- starting -- pardon me -- starting at line 14, 21| B of that where it talks about service lives. It says,
22| Mr. Lay restates the definition of depreciation 22| "The estimated useful service lives of depreciable
23| accounting from the American Institute of CPA's as 23| property must be supported by engineering, economic or
24| follows: Depreciation accounting is a system of 24| other depreciation studies."
25| accounting which aims to distribute the cost or other 25 And so when we're talking about service life,
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1| it's important to note that operational life and 1| that should be considered when establishing
2| economic life could be two different things. And the 2| depreciation. And it says, and | quote, "Among the
3| Commission has flexibility to determine which lives it 3| causes to be given consideration are wear and tear,
4| will use in setting depreciation rates and customer 4| decay, actions of the elements, inadequacy,
5| rates. 5| obsolescence, changes in the art, changes in demand, and
6 And our proposal here is not one that looks at 6| requirements of public authorities."
7| how long a particular facility such as Jim Bridger or 7 | think that the latter part of that quote
8| Colstrip will last. It's not an evaluation or an 8| describes the flexibility that the Commission has in
9| engineering study of how long that actual equipment will 9| determining depreciation in that it doesn't have to be
10| last. But rather it's a proposal to adjust the useful 10| solely based on an engineering or operational life of an
11| service life from an economic basis to be able to adapt 11| asset, but it could be based on other policy
12| to the future to address existing and emerging 12| considerations, which is what the Company's proposal
13| environmental policies. 13| here in this case is.
14| Q. Thank you. And just to be sure that | have your 14 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: And if | can break in
15| answer, you're stating that the Company's current best 15| for just a moment, we don't have the full CFR in the
16| estimate of the service life of the Jim Bridger coal 16| record. So I'm going to take administrative notice of
17| plant assets is the year 2025; is that your testimony? 17| it
18 A. Yes. Our testimony is that 2025 is a more 18 You were referring to which part of the CFR?
19| accurate reflection of the economic service life of the 19 THE WITNESS: Yes, Judge. It's the
20| facility, and would be more appropriate to be included 20| Definitions sections. The title is Uniform System of
21| in customer rates for those risk mitigation factors | 21| Accounts Prescribed for Public Utilities and Licensees
22| mentioned. 22| Subject to the Provisions of the Federal Power Act, and
23| Q. And if | ask you the same question with regard 23| it's under the Definitions section, and the reference |
24| to Colstrip, it would be your testimony that the best 24| just quoted was item 12, Depreciation.
25| estimate of the service life of Colstrip would be the 25 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Thank you.
Page 160 Page 162
EXAMINATION BY MR. FFITCH / DALLEY EXAMINATION BY MR. FFITCH / DALLEY
1| year 20327 1 MR. FFITCH: Thank you, your Honor. We're
2| A. Yes. A better estimate anyway, and one that 2| fine with that -- inclusion of that in the record.
3| could also be reevaluated by the Commission in a future 3| BY MR. FFITCH:
4| proceeding. The Commission's decision in this case 4] Q. Just following on with talking about subpart B,
5| would not lock in that life permanently; it would -- 5| Mr. Dalley, as we've just read, the explanation states
6| could be reevaluated based on economic and other policy 6| that the useful service lives must be supported by
7| considerations in the future. 7| engineering, economic or other depreciation studies.
8| Q. Allright. Let's look at subpart B of this 8 Have you or has PacifiCorp in this case
9| definition, which is titled "Service lives." And that 9| presented any engineering, economic or other
10| states that the "Estimated useful service lives of 10| depreciation studies that demonstrate or result in a
11| depreciable property must be supported by engineering, 11| service life for the Jim Bridger units that would end in
12| economic, or other depreciation studies," correct? 12| 2025?
13| A. Yes. 13 A. We have not performed an engineering or
14| Q. And do you agree with that? 14| economic -- or engineering or depreciation study
15| A. Ildo. 15| associated with these facilities, as I've mentioned in
16| Q. Allright. 16| some of the questions with you, Mr. ffitch, and from
17| A. Maybe another just point, in this same 17| Staff.
18| voluminous document, it has a Definition section in that 18 But what we have presented is a request to the
19| Code of Federal Regulations. It's a few pages before, 19| Commission to adjust those rates based on emerging
20| if you have the actual hard copy book. In that 20| policy considerations, which, under the CFR, are
21| Definition section, under item 11 -- or excuse me -- 21| perfectly permitable [sic] and allowed by our state
22| item 12, it describes depreciation and considerations or 22| utility commissions.
23| factors that should be considered when determining 23| Q. Andyou have not presented any such studies for
24| depreciation. 24| the Colstrip 4 unit indicating a service life ending in
25 In that section it goes through a list of items 25| 2032 either, have you, or has Pacific Power?
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1| A. No. There's no depreciation study as part of 1| wait five years. We could file in that timeframe, but
2| this case. 2| then it would take some time for that to be evaluated
3 Q. When will your next depreciation study be filed 3| and approved.
4| in Washington? 4 And the reason we're making the proposal as part
5/  A. We typically file them every five years, and our 5| of this case is we think it's a prime opportunity to
6| last depreciation study was effective January of 2014, 6| make this change. Any further delay compresses the
7| filed in -- | think it was a 2012 study approved in 7| window of opportunity you have to adjust rates without
8| 2013. So to get to your question, five years from that 8| having a significant impact on customer rates. And so
9| point would be the 2018 timeframe, potentially, for 9| the longer you wait, the greater the risk that
10| depreciation rates effective in 2019. 10| increasing the depreciation expense or shortening the
11| Q. The Company has some discretion about when to 11| lives will have a more drastic impact to customer rates.
12| file its next depreciation study, does it not? 12| Q. If you did file a depreciation study sooner, for
13| A. Certainly. 13| example, in 2017, that depreciation study would be able
14| Q. Soif -- so you can file a new depreciation 14| to take into account the additional policy
15| study sooner than your current plan if situations arise |[15| considerations you're talking about along with all of
16| that would warrant a new study being filed earlier, 16| the other elements that are contained in the CFR, would
17| correct? 17| it not?
18 A. We could, but | would note that, even if we 18 A. It would, but when it comes to coal facilities,
19| filed a depreciation study tomorrow, the conclusion 19| I think the overriding element that will determine those
20| that would -- would not change, in that a depreciation 20| depreciation rates is not the engineering component;
21| study looks at a number of factors, including, as you've 21| it's the policy component.
22| mentioned, Mr. ffitch, engineering and other analysis of 22| Q. But again, you could -- the Commission and the
23| facilities. 23| Company itself could consider that in the context of the
24 But there's also other factors that need to be 24| full depreciation analysis and also of an IRP that was
25| considered when establishing depreciable lives, and 25| being presented in approximately the same timeframe?
Page 164 Page 166
EXAMINATION BY MR. FFITCH / DALLEY EXAMINATION BY MR. FFITCH / DALLEY
1| those other factors could be and are policy implications 1| A. Itcould,yes.
2| or environmental regulations. And so even if we were to 2| Q. You acknowledge in your testimony -- in your
3| conduct a depreciation study tomorrow, the result of our 3| rebuttal testimony that changing the depreciation lives
4| proposal in this case would not change. 4| would not restrict PacifiCorp from using generation
5| Q. And you didn't file an economic study with 5| resources from Jim Bridger or Colstrip to serve
6| regard to either Bridger or Colstrip in this case, 6| Washington customers after 2025 in the case of Jim
7| correct? 7| Bridger, or 2032 in the case of Colstrip, correct?
8| A. That's correct. It's not the calculations of 8| A. Thatis correct.
9| the adjustment to the -- the lives that we're proposing 9] Q. Soit's quite possible that the plant -- both
10| to adjust, to shorten, are based on policy 10| those plants would be running after the accelerated
11| considerations and align with depreciable lives that 11| useful life dates that you propose here, and they would
12| were previously approved by this Commission. 12| be serving Washington customers; isn't that true?
13| Q. And when will PacifiCorp's next IRP be presented 13| A. Yes, that's a possibility.
14| to the Commission? 14 Q. And it's correct, is it not, that Pacific is
15| A. Our next -- we just filed our 2015 IRP update at 15| planning to put into service SCRs or scrubbers as a
16| the end of March, and our next depreciation or IRP will 16| substantial expense in 2021 and 2022 for the Jim Bridger
17| be presented to the Commission in March of next year. 17| plants just prior to the service life date of 2025 that
18| And so it's a two-year cycle, so we filed in March of 18| you're proposing here?
19| 2015, we will file in March of 2017. In those 19 A. There are investment decisions associated with
20| in-between years, we present an IRP update. 20| Jim Bridger Units 1 and 2 that will need to be made.
21 Q. So it would be possible for the Company to file 21| The Company has not made those decisions, and
22| a depreciation study in the same timeframe as the IRP 22| anticipates evaluating all options associated with
23| before this Commission, would it not? 23| complying with federal and state requirements when it
24| A, lIt's certainly possible. We do have the 24| makes those investment decisions on those units.
25| flexibility. There's no requirement that we have to 25| Q. Okay. Thank you.
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1 Mr. Dalley, are you aware of recent legislation 1| correct.
2| in Utah that provides for the establishment of a 2| Q. Isurecan. That's rebuttal testimony, RBT-3
3| regulatory liability that could be used at some future 3| [sic], page 18.
4| date to depreciate a thermal generation plant? 4| A. Okay. Thank you.
5 A. Yes, I'm generally familiar. 5 Q. Andit's at line 14, | believe.
6 Q. And in that legislation, Utah Commission would 6 COMMISSIONER JONES: What page is that,
7| determine that it's in the public interest for 7| Counsel?
8| compliance with environmental regulation or other 8 MR. FFITCH: Page 18, your Honor, and it's
9| purposes; that is, the regulatory liability would be 9| lines 14 and 15.
10| used for that purpose? 10| BY MR. FFITCH:
11| A. Yes. 11| Q. Do you see that, Mr. Dalley?
12 Q. And it's true, isn't it, that under that 12 A. Yes, | do. Thank you.
13| legislation, the depreciation rates are not being 13 Q. And PacifiCorp has not filed an attrition study
14| changed for Pacific Power? 14| in this case, has it?
15| A. Thatis correct. The -- the legislation in Utah 15| A. Ithas not. | clarify in my testimony that we
16| is a bit different. And as | mentioned earlier, each 16| have not filed a formal attrition study in support of
17| state has kind of jurisdiction over how they want to 17| our second-year rate increase. We've taken a different
18| treat depreciable lives for investments, and there's 18| approach. We've used our historical under-earnings and
19| differing perspectives, as you could imagine, among our 19| ten-year trend of under-earnings as support of that
20| service territory. 20| two-year rate plan, but the way we've calculated that
21 The Utah specific legislation allows for a pool 21| second-step rate increase is with discrete and
22| of dollars to be used and set aside for potential early 22| measurable adjustments that will happen to our revenue
23| retirement of coal facilities, but it's packaged 23| requirement in that second year.
24| together with a number of different factors, including 24| Q. And you state in your testimony over on page 22,
25| changing the way the Company recovers its -- the cost of 25| line 5 -- this is your rebuttal testimony, RBT-3 [sic],
Page 168 Page 170
EXAMINATION BY MR. FFITCH / DALLEY EXAMINATION BY MR. FFITCH / DALLEY
1| its demand-side management programs. 1| that "PacifiCorp is not proposing an attrition
2 And so it's different than what we have here 2| adjustment that relies on trending analysis or
3| before this Commission as part of this case, but it's 3| escalation factors" the way that Avista did in its last
4| a --it's another way to address some of the risks that 4| general rate case, correct?
5| we're talking about here. 5| A. Thatis correct. | think the next sentence kind
6 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: So Mr. ffitch -- 6| of describes what | was just referring to; it's "based
7 MR. FFITCH: Yes. 7| on limited, discrete adjustments."”
8 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: -- is this proposed 8| Q. Isn'tthe Company essentially just asking for a
9| legislation or is this passed legislation? 9| future test year approach in this case?
10 MR. FFITCH: It's passed, adopted 10| A. No. That's not what we've proposed. A future
11| legislation, your Honor. 11| test year would walk all elements of revenue requirement
12 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: And what is the citation 12| forward to the future rate year. We tried to make our
13| to that? We'll take official notice of it. 13| two-year rate plan relatively easy to audit and review
14 MR. FFITCH: | can get that with you after 14| and transparent for parties, as we've identified four
15| consultation with our witness. 15| discrete items, three capital investments, and the
16 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Okay. Thank you. 16| expiration of production tax credits as the calculation
17| BY MR. FFITCH: 17| to quantify that increase for the second year.
18 Q. I'd like to switch gears a little bit, 18| Q. Sois that a future test year for just those
19| Mr. Dalley, and talk about the rate plan proposal in the |19| particular cost items?
20| case. 20| A. No. Each of those components will be known and
21 In your rebuttal testimony, you state that the 21| measurable well in advance of that second step rate
22| purpose of the rate plan is to address asserted, quote, [22| increase. Each of those investments will be completed
23| "earnings attrition," end quote, and cost increases, 23| by the end of this year. In fact, one of them, our
24| correct? 24| EMS/SCADA project, has already been completed; Union
25| A. Could you point me to the cite? That sounds 25| Gap, which is the second of the three capital
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1| investments, will be completed this month; and the SCR 1| increase at all in year one if the adjustment to
2| and Bridger Unit 4 will be completed in November of this 2| accelerate depreciation is removed?
3| year. 3| A. While that is true that there would be a reduced
4 MR. FFITCH: May | have a moment, 4| revenue requirement from what we're proposing, our
5| your Honor? I'm getting relatively close again. 5| proposal to use end-of-period rate base is important in
6 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: That's fine. Thank you. 6| this case and is different than the 2014 rate case
7| BY MR. FFITCH: 7| because we're requesting a two-year rate plan. And
8| Q. Mr. Dalley, could you please turn to your 8| those circumstances are different than what we had in
9| rebuttal testimony, RBT-3 [sic], page 30? 9| the last case.
10| A. Yes, I'm there. 10 And so establishing end-of-period balances in
11| Q. And then looking at lines 8 through 10, and 11| that first year of the revenue requirement is important
12| there you indicate, "The Commission found that the 12| because we don't plan to have a case, or we're planning
13| record in the 2014 rate case was inadequate to 13| to stay out of a rate case for that rate plan. And so
14| demonstrate that the use of end-of-period rate base did 14| that element is different than what we had in the prior
15| not violate the matching principle." 15| case.
16 That's your testimony, correct? 16| Q. But how do you explain that if there's no
17 A. Yes. 17| increase -- absent the depreciation acceleration, if
18| Q. And then on this same page, lines 1 through 5 up 18| there's no increase otherwise shown for year one that's
19| above, you state that "the Commission found that 19| demonstrative of regulatory lag? | guess that's what
20| PacifiCorp had not established that it met one of the 20| I'm having trouble understanding.
21| four conditions that justify the use of end-of-period 21| A. Well, | think, as Staff points out in its
22| rate base," right, and you list those four items? 22| testimony, that when establishing a multi-year rate
23 A. Yes, | do. 23| plan, aligning rate-based balances with the levels that
24| Q. The first condition you identify is "abnormal 24| are anticipated for the rate effective period are
25| growth in plant." 25| important. And if you have annual rate cases where you
Page 172 Page 174
EXAMINATION BY MR. FFITCH / DALLEY EXAMINATION BY MR. COWELL / DALLEY
1 You're not contending that the Company has had 1| could reset those rate-based balances each year, | think
2| abnormal growth in plant in this case, are you? 2| that's what the Commission was referring to in the 2014
3| A. Ididn't specify that in my testimony, although 3| order that you referred me to on lines 8 through 10 of
4| I think an argument can be made. The four investments 4| my testimony.
5| that we have included as part of this case are 5 But in this case, we've taken a different
6| substantial. 6| approach. We've proposed two modest increases and a
7 The Jim Bridger Unit 3 and 4 upgrades are in the 7| two-year rate plan, and so establishing those rate-based
8| $130 million range each; and our EMS/SCADA project is 8| balances at the end-of-period levels for that first year
9| around 32 million; the Union Gap substation is around 20 9| is important to allow us to kind of honor that rate
10| million. And so all of those are significant capital 10| plan.
11| additions in the Company's rate base. 11| Q. Allright. Thank you, Mr. Dalley.
12| Q. Those are proposed for inclusion in year two, 12 MR. FFITCH: Your Honor, | have no further
13| not by means of an end-of-period rate base analysis; 13| questions for this witness.
14| isn't that right? 14 JUDGE FRIEDLANDER: Thank you, Mr. ffitch.
15| A. The Jim Bridger Unit 3 addition is part of year 15 Mr. Cowell?
16| one. 16 MR. COWELL: Thank you, your Honor. Good
17| Q. The next condition that's listed is [as read] 17| morning, commissioners.
18| "inflation and/or high attrition."” 18 *** EXAMINATION BY MR. COWELL ***
19 You're not claiming that we are in a period of 19| BY MR. COWELL:
20| high inflation at this time, are you? 20| Q. And good morning, Mr. Dalley.
21| A. No. 21| A. Good morning.
22| Q. And then the third criteria that you identify is 22| Q. So Mr. Dalley, if we could start with
23| "as a means to reduce regulatory lag." 23| Cross-Exhibit 5.
24 Do you agree that, in this case, even with an 24| A. Okay. I'm there.
25| end-of-period rate base included, there would be no rate |25 Q. And the first page, which is the response you
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